
COMBINED BOARD OF SELECTMAN AND BOARD OF FINANCE 
PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING 
MINUTES OF MEETING---DRAFT 
MARCH 12, 2012 
 
Pursuant to the call and written notice, the Public Budget Hearing of the Board of 
Selectman and the Board of Finance was held on Monday March 12, 2012 at 7:00 pm in 
the Board of Education Administrative Offices, Seminar Room 300, 501 Kings Highway 
East, Fairfield, CT. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Chairman Thomas Flynn, Robert Bellitto, Jr., Ken Brachfeld,  Kevin Kiley, Mary 
LeClerc, Robert Stone, Christopher DeWitt, James Brown 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
Elaine Gaffney 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Michael Tetreau, Cristin McCarthy-Vahey, Board of Selectmen, Town of Fairfield, Jim 
Walsh, Board of Selectmen (7:31 pm) 
Paul Hiller, Chief Fiscal Officer and Clerk of the Board of Finance 
Linda Gardiner, Budget Director, Town of Fairfield 
Donald Leslie, Director of Information Technology, Town of Fairfield 
Donald Ross, Tax Assessor, Town of Fairfield 
Mary Ellen Holland, Purchasing Director, Town of Fairfield 
Stan Gorzelany, Tax Collector, Town of Fairfield 
Gerry Lombardo, Director of Recreation, Town of Fairfield 
Karen Ronald, Town Librarian, Town of Fairfield 
Nancy Coriaty, Deputy Town Librarian, Town of Fairfield 
Peter Grace, Superintendent-Golf Courses, Town of Fairfield 
 
Chairman Tom Flynn called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm 
 
FINANCE 
Paul Hiller presented the over view to the board, stating this year’s budget is status quo 
with the exception of an additional line for 1mil going into the Town Surplus Fund-an 
effort to enhance the fund as other AAA communities are doing the same. 
 
Mr. Flynn asked what our current balance is and the % -Mr.  Hiller responded our current 
balance is 13.5 mil and we are just a little over 5% where we should be closer to 10%.  
Mr. Hiller stated that we are slowly each year attempting to increase this fund. 
Mr. Tetreau stated that the town is using a multi year approach to get this fund up to the 
10%-as other costs in the budget are not going up will use money to build this fund in 
small increments. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey asked if the Town was going to purse a Post Retirement Benefits Survey 
study-Mr. Hiller stated that the Town has recently completed this study. 
 



Mr. Flynn asked about the 3.87% increase in the payroll line-Mr. Hiller stated that the 
increase is due to the THEA contract settlement increase and also that the Department 
Head increase was not reflected in last year’s budget but is included in this budget. 
Paul Hiller stated that all Department Heads were given a 2% increase effective July 1, 
2011.  Mr. Tetreau explained that all DH increases for last year were covered by the 
contingency account. 
 
No Public Comment 
 
PURCHASING 
 
Director Mary Ellen Holland presented the budget to the boards and explained the largest 
increase was the payroll line which is due to the THEA contract increase settlement.  Ms. 
Holland stated that all other expenses in her department have been reduced this year.  Ms. 
Gardiner explained that the largest portion of the payroll increase is due to step increase 
scheduled for the Jr. Buyer. 
 
Mr. Tetreau informed the boards that all payroll increases in every department are 
directly due to the THEA contract settlement which provides increases this year. 
 
Mr. DeWitt asked if the new rules in bidding process are advantageous for the 
town/department and Ms. Holland said there is significant improvement. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey asked if there was enough in the budget under education for training a 
new employee as Ms. Holland will be hiring a new Jr. Buyer this year and Ms. Holland 
said there is enough funding. 
 
No Public Comment 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 
Ms. Holland presented; No Public or Board Comments. 
 
TAX ASSESSOR 
 
Assessor Donald Ross presented the budget to the boards. 
 
Mr. Bellitto questioned the $114,000 increase in fees and professional services to which 
Mr. Ross explained these costs are due to the re-valuation and appeals and for appraisal 
and support costs and no legal costs are included in this amount. 
 
Mr. Brachfeld questioned if costs are included in contract with the consultants who 
performed the re-valuation- Mr. Ross explained that while there is some support costs 
included in the contract, such as personnel to appear for 5 court days per appeal, others 
are not and the Town hires real estate consultants on advice of counsel. 
 
No Public Comment 

Page 2 of 11  



TAX COLLECTOR 
 
Tax Collector Stan Gorzelany presented the budget to the boards, explaining the largest 
increase is in payroll and is the result of the THEA contract increase settlement. 
 
Mr. Bellitto questioned the on-line tax payment procedures in place-Mr. Gorzelany stated 
that the Town has been using an on-line payment system for 5 years and is currently 
installing new software system which will have improvements.  Mr. Gorzelany noted that 
only 2% of tax payers currently pay on-line.  Also noted that the Town does not charge 
for paying taxes on line, however banks and on-line suppliers do charge tax payers a 
minimal amount for processing. 
 
Mr. Gorzelany also noted that with the new software system currently being installed, tax 
payers will be notified every quarter about their upcoming bills, something which the 
Town currently is not doing. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey asked why postage is going up if the new system can save on mailings.  
Mr. Gorzelany stated that per State Statue the Town is still required to mail out tax bills 
to residents. 
 
Selectman Jim Walsh arrives at 7:31pm. 
 
Mr. Hiller noted that the new software is being installed, which take a few months to get 
up and running and the Town is hopeful it will be operational in April and that the new 
enhancements will benefit the Town saving time and dollars. 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
Mr. Flynn and the boards congratulated and thanked Mr. Gorzelany on his years of 
service to the Town and wished him well on his upcoming retirement.  Mr. Gorzelany 
thanked the boards for many years of support. 
 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
 
Director Donald Leslie presented the budget to the boards and noted 2 big price tickets 
items included this year budget –diskless backup system and patch software for the new 
operation system. 
 
Mr. DeWitt questioned the funding for FairTV – Mr. Leslie stated we have supported this 
funding in the past, that we pool with 6 other area communities and that the quality, labor 
and supplies are consistent.  Also noted that this request will be in every future year’s 
budget. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of  11  



Mr. DeWitt noted the small amount ($3000) for fees and professional services, which Mr. 
Leslies stated was earmarked for disaster recovery which has not been done on MUNIS 
(BOE) and that the Town will be using the new diskless system in the basement at 
Fairfield Woods Library for disaster recovery.  Mr. Leslie also stated that the new 
diskless system ill save time and dollars for the town. 
 
Mr. Bellitto questioned capital equipment replacement plan-Mr. Leslie stated that the IT 
Department determines the when equipment should be replaced/upgraded. 
  
Mr. Bellitto asked for a more explicit breakdown on equipment that is being purchased to 
see what is being brought. 
 
Mr. Brachfeld noted that the maintenance and repairs is down 52% this year compared to 
triple in 2012 budget… Mr. Walsh asks for follow up information on this and if Town is 
currently on track- Mr. Leslie stated we have new equipment requiring less repairs and 
the Town YTD is at $43,000. 
 
Mr. Stone inquired as to why the disaster recovery for MUNIS is not include in the BOE 
budget, and also why the FairTV funding is not shared with BOE-Mr. Leslie stated town 
is paying for disaster recovery for MUNIS program and that no request for FairTV has 
gone to the BOE as the Town fully funds this request. 
 
Mr. Kiley asked for an updated and formal detailed disaster recovery plan and budget for 
this plan-one that supports today and tomorrow-a Town wide specific disaster recovery 
plan. 
 
Mr. Walsh asked about salary line – will it increase if contracts are settled. 
Mr. Tetreau stated that all salary projections come from the Finance Department and any 
payroll costs associated with contract settlements will be covered by the contingency 
account. 
 
Mr. Walsh questioned why the fees and professional services line is going down 13.8%- 
Mr. Leslie stated that the IT Department usually pays for software for all departments, 
however some have taken over the costs in their own budgets, so items were moved out 
of this line.  
Ms. M-Vahey asked for a detailed list of exactly what was moved out of this line. 
 
Ms. LeClerc asked if the $20,000 request for FairTV was just for Fairfield-Mr. Leslie 
said yes all other Towns pay for them. 
 
Ms. LeClerc questioned why the communications line was increasing.  Mr. Leslie stated 
that contracts have expired and they are renegotiating and added new costs in this year’s 
budget. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 11  



Mr. Walsh inquired where Town’s disaster recovery is located-and if there are generators 
at these locations.  Mr. Leslie stated that the main disaster recovery is located in the 
basement of Fairfield Woods Library and that MUNIS is located in the Burr School-
where there is a generator however it is not hooked up to the room where it is located. 
 
The Board requested and updated Disaster Recovery plan as to where we are now and 
where we are going, to be ready and presented at their next Quarterly meeting on April 
24th, 2012. 
 
Mr. Walsh asked about the $32,000 increase in the special departmental supplies line-Mr. 
Leslie said that the new PC Patch Software system ($15,000) is included in this amount 
and also, general software licenses.  Mr. Leslie noted that Windows 7 funding was cut 
from last year’s budget and he is catching up with that in this year’s budget. 
 
Mr. Flynn questioned BOE vs Town IT costs, number of people using the system and if 
we are getting what we are paying for compared to other towns and are we being 
efficient. Are we spending wisely-what is the plan and what direction is IT going. 
Mr. Leslie responded that it is hard to compare with other Towns as some have separate 
IT Departments for Police/Fire etc. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Jim Gallagher, Congress Street-Supports FairTV- improved services to the Town and 
encourages the boards to continue to fund this request. 
 
Mr. DeWitt suggests the use of the Operational Audit for Guidance. 
 
BOARD OF FINANCE 
 
Paul Hiller presented the budget to the boards, noting that fees and professional services 
are up due to a quote for audit services. 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 
 
Mr. Hiller stated the Town is currently at $235,000 YTD-running true to estimate amount 
of $400,000.  We are currently waiting the February billing however over the next few 
months’ liability should be decreasing. 
 
Mr. Brown asked if we allocate unemployment by department-Mr. Hiller answered that 
we do not and that our figures include the BOE and a majority is for part time 
employment at the golf courses.  Mr. Hiller told the boards that the Town is using a new 
firm to monitor and audit our unemployment claims.   
 
 
 

Page 5 of  11  



Mr. Bellitto suggested we look at part time employment vs independent contractor and if 
that option has been investigated, if it is an option especially for seasonal employees. 
 
Mr. Brachfeld requested a breakdown of unemployment compensation per department. 
Mr. Kiley requested an analysis of % of unemployment to payroll costs. 
 
 
LIBRARY 
 
Town Librarian Karen Ronald addressed the boards-noting that the Main Library is the 
2nd busiest in the State and that our branch has had a record year. 
 
Mr. DeWitt questioned the increase for materials for Pequot up 48%-do we not share 
materials with Pequot and the branch; are they supplementing the Main Library’s 
materials and if does the Town receive any income from Pequot from the dollars they 
receive on fines. 
 
Ms. Ronald explained that materials are shared between Main, Branch and Pequot and 
that each individually buys new materials each year to compliment each others inventory. 
 
Ms. Ronald addressed the boards in regards to her request for an additional IT full time 
person for the library (not in this year’s budget).  The Library currently has only 1 full 
time person (Jim Swift –present with her) devoted to It, who is available 35 hours a week.  
Ms. Ronald expressed concerns with the addition of new technology, more computers 
and technical equipment that 1 person would not be able to handle the work load. 
Mr. Walsh asked if this position is not in the budget recommend by the First selectman to 
which Mr. Tetreau responded that is correct- this position is not in his recommended 
budget.  Mr. Tetreau stated there are numerous departments that have staffing issues and 
these position requests just are not prudent in this year’s budget. 
 
Mr. DeWitt asked if Ms. Ronald see any differences with the new purchasing procedures 
in place.  Ms. Ronald absolutely sees positive results and loves the new procedures. 
 
Mr. Walsh asked if they digital library is being used –yes 70% of inventory is almost out; 
also the increase in this line item this year-will this trend continue.  Ms. Ronald said have 
doubled their request for new materials this year and yes, they will continue to add to this 
especially in the area of reference. 
Ms. M.-Vahey asked who handles problems with the digital library materials.  Ms. 
Ronald stated that her Mr. Swift, IT, and her staff assist Jim in technical issues. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey questioned the rental/storage and maintenance/repairs line going down.  
Ms. Ronald explained that the library is getting rid of photocopiers, which are leased, as 
more people are using scanners. 
 
 
 

Page 6 of  11  
 



 
Mr. Flynn questioned mid-long term staffing model for our libraries –more or less being 
anticipated.  Ms. Ronald explained that the usage of the library has shifted-more now as a 
community center offering programs and assistance and sees variables changing staffing 
needs. 
 
Mr. Flynn inquired on how the new self-checkout system, costing the Town over 
$200,000, is being used – Mr. Swift responded that currently the self-check out is being 
used by 13-15% of patrons of the library.  Mr. Flynn followed up asking if staff could be 
used to promote and encourage the new system being used more.  Ms. Ronald responded 
that staffing resources are not available. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey encourages more usage of this new system, and asks how many part time 
people does the library hire-Ms. Ronald stated approx. 80 part timers. 
Ms. M.-Vahey inquired if digital and computers will be replacing more books in the 
future-Ms. Ronald said that while there will be more digital books will never be 
completely replaced,. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Alan Marks, Figlar Avenue- works across from Stamford Library, loves our library but 
notes that Stamford ahs added a bookstore and it is very busy/successful and Fairfield 
should do the same.  Ms. Ronald noted that the Main Branch has one –for the last year 
called Twice Read and it is proving successful. 
Ken Lee, Rhoda Avenue- Technology is critical as people are becoming more dependant 
on technology. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey requested that grant money information become more transparent as to 
where it is received from and how the dollars are actually spent. 
 
PENFIELD PAVILION COMPLEX 
 
Gerry Lomardo, Director of Recreation addressed the boards.  Mr. Lombardo noted that 
slight increase in seasonal payroll due to the addition of a Winter Director working on 
rentals for the new facility.  Mr. Lombardo is hopeful that income from rentals will soon 
cover cost of new part time position. 
 
Mr. Dewitt noted locker rentals down (number decreased with new renovations); sailboat 
storage and rentals on Penfield 1 are up. 
 
Mr. Walsh questioned maintenance/repairs up 10%-Mr. Lombardo responded that the 
new building is bigger and need more cleaning-new outdoor bathrooms need cleaning 
attention. 
 
 
 

Page 7 of  11  
 



Mr. Stone asked if the Town is actively marketing the new Penfield; Mr. Lombardo 
stated that not yet they are planning a full scale marketing plan for the near future-that 
they are just getting started with renting the new facility. 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION 
 
Director Gerry Lombardo noted an increase in the seasonal payroll and explained that 
this is due to the special needs program-that busing costs for the summer special needs 
programs are no longer being provided by the town as costs have so they have added an 
additional 1 hour earlier start to the program to enable parents time to adjust for the 
offset. 
 
Ms. M.-Vahey asked if there were any other options than to drop the busing, however 
Mr. Lombardo stated that the Town offers this program at a very small price and could 
not justify the expense. 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
WATERFRONT AND MARINA 
 
Director of Recreation Gerry Lombardo informed the board that the Town will extend the 
hours of collection for parking fees at all area beaches this year from 6 pm to 8pm and 
thus income revenue has a slight increase. 
 
No Public Comment 
 
GOLF COURSES 
 
Peter Grace, Superintendent of Golf Courses, and Golf Commission Member Craig 
Curley addressed the Boards and noted that the H Smith Richardson and the Par 3 
courses always breaks even or makes money every year. 
 
Also noted capital requests down for Par 3-otherwise budget is status quo. 
 
Mr. Brachfeld asked if number of rounds was down last year due to bad weather-Mr. 
Grace responded that last year was a terrible weather year for golf as rain was very much 
a factor affecting weekend golf and yes number of rounds were overall down, however 
both courses are already open and being used vigorously this year. 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
 
 
 

Page 8 of  11  
 



NOT FOR PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS 
 
RYASAP 
Robert Francis, Executive Director 
NO Public Comment 
 
PEQUOT LIBRARY 
Dan Snydacker, Executive Director 
 
Mr. DeWitt asked about Pequot’s collection to which Mr. Snydacker responded that 
Pequot’s collection does indeed supplement Fairfield’s collection and each year 1/3 of 
their funding is provided by the Town and the rest the Pequot Library raises on their own. 
 
NO Public Comment. 
 
FAIRFIELD COUNSELING SERVICES 
Dorothy Timmermann, Executive Director-flat increase in requests along with new 
services being offered. 
 
NO Public Comment 
 
DISCOVERY MUSEUM 
Jeff Bishop, Executive Director, Al Winnikey noted that the $24,000 request asked from 
the Town is part of their 1.8 mil operating budget, 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
GREATER BRIDGEPORT REGIONAL COUNCIL 
Brian Bridoli, Executive Director- flat request; 2nd lowest in State with fees and formulas 
–based on grand list and population size. 
 
NO Public Comment 
 
AUDUBON SOCIETY 
Nelson North, Director  
 
No Public Comment. 
 
GREATER BRIDGEPORT TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
Tom Gorman, Finance Director-flat increase, no formula used-historical dollar amounts. 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
 
 
 

Page 9 of  11 
 



FAIRFIELD MUSEUM & HISTORY CENTER 
Mike Jehle, Executive Director- request is approx 5% of budget; increase noted in 
students from surrounding communities as well as Fairfield; small amount charged per 
student/person covered by school or PTA’s ; member supported. 
 
No Public Comment 
 
FAIRFIELD VETERAN’S ADVISORY AND INFO SERVICES 
 
No Public Comment 
 
SO. CT. EMS COUNCIL 
Flat increase noted 
 
No Public Comment 
 
SO. WEST REGIONAL MENTAL HEALTH  BOARD 
Kim O’Reilly, Director-flat increase- formula is based on per capita 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
SO.WEST REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS CENTER 
Jeff Merwin, Director –mandated contributions –per diem based on per capita 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
GREATER BRIDGEPORT COUNCIL OF CHURCHES-JANIS CENTER 
Dale Holder, Director 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
GRASMERE BY THE SEA 
Ken Flatto, Director of Development; Members of the Board0 requested amount is 6% of 
their operating budget. 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
SULLIVAN-MCKINNLEY ELDER HOUSING 
Carolyn Durgy, President Board of Directors 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
FAIRFIELD ARTS CENTER 
 
No Public Comment 
 
 

Page 10 of  11 



KENNEDY CENTER 
Joanne McMullin, Director of Fundraising  
 
No Public Comment. 
 
MILL RIVER WETLANDS COMMITTEE 
Charlene Braun-Schindler, Committee Member 
 
No Public Comment 
 
FAIRFIELD THEATRE COMPANY 
Noted that there is no increase in this budget, just that actual costs have been removed 
from the Public Works budget and placed here where actual costs are associated with this 
building. 
 
Boards discusses term of lease agreement and whether the Town is actually getting the 
agreed revenue on a timely basis from the Theatre Company and questioned true costs 
and expenses versus revenue.  No knowledgeable decisions/discussions can take place 
without the lease agreement, Boards requests copies of the Lease agreements for all 
members to review. 
 
CENTER FOR WOMEN AND FAMILIES 
Susan Schnitzer, Director 
Mr. Walsh recues himself from this item, noting his lose, personal relationship with this 
organization and the Director in the past, and wants this duly noted. 
 
No Public Comment 
 
PILOT HOUSE 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
Board of Finance urges that the committee be put back in place for the process of Not-For 
Profit requests and all information should be included and reviewed-including budgets, 
formulas for requests, missions, how services our community.  Board encourages 
participation from the First Selectman and RTM. 
 
Motion to adjourn by Mr. Bellitto, seconded by Ms. M.-Vahey; adjourned at 10:54 pm. 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted by Christine S. Boccamazzo 
 
 
 

Page 11 of 11 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


